

5

1           **SECTION 2981.** 218.51 (3) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

2           218.51 (3) (am) 2. The department of transportation may not disclose any  
3 information received under subd. 1. a. or b. to any person except to the department  
4 of workforce development children and families for the sole purpose of administering  
5 s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications  
6 under s. 73.0301.

7           **SECTION 2982.** 218.51 (3) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

8           218.51 (3) (am) 3. If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a buyer  
9 identification card is an individual who does not have a social security number, the  
10 applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the buyer identification  
11 card, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the  
12 department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of  
13 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of workforce development  
14 children and families. Any buyer identification card issued or renewed in reliance  
15 upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is invalid.

16           **SECTION 2983.** 218.51 (4m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

17           218.51 (4m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license  
18 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making  
19 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,  
20 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,  
21 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued  
22 by the department of workforce development children and families or a county child  
23 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
24 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.  
25 49.857.

1           **SECTION 2985.** 224.40 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           224.40 (2) **FINANCIAL RECORD MATCHING AGREEMENTS.** A financial institution is  
3 required to enter into an agreement with the department of workforce development  
4 children and families in accordance with rules promulgated under s. 49.853 (2).

5           **SECTION 2986.** 224.40 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

6           224.40 (3) (b) Disclosing information to the department of workforce  
7 development children and families or a county child support agency pursuant to the  
8 financial record matching program under s. 49.853.

9           **SECTION 2987.** 224.40 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

10          224.40 (3) (c) Encumbering or surrendering any assets held by the financial  
11 institution in response to instructions provided by the department of workforce  
12 development children and families or a county child support agency for the purpose  
13 of enforcing a child support obligation.

14          **SECTION 2988.** 224.72 (2) (c) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

15          224.72 (2) (c) 2. b. The department may disclose information under subd. 1. a.  
16 to the department of workforce development children and families in accordance  
17 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

18          **SECTION 2989.** 224.72 (2) (d) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

19          224.72 (2) (d) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
20 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
21 a registration under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under  
22 oath or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security  
23 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of  
24 workforce development children and families.

25          **SECTION 2990.** 224.72 (7m) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           224.72 (7m) (c) The applicant for the issuance or renewal is an individual who  
2 fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the  
3 department of workforce development children and families or a county child  
4 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support  
5 proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or  
6 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses  
7 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of  
8 understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose registration is not  
9 issued or renewed under this paragraph for delinquent payments is entitled to a  
10 notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or hearing  
11 under this section.

12           **SECTION 2991.** 224.77 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

13           224.77 (6) RESTRICTION OR SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION. The department shall  
14 restrict or suspend the registration of a mortgage banker, loan originator or  
15 mortgage broker if the registrant is an individual who fails to comply, after  
16 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
17 workforce development children and families or a county child support agency under  
18 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent  
19 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
20 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
21 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
22 s. 49.857. A registrant whose registration is restricted or suspended under this  
23 subsection is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of  
24 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or  
25 hearing under this section.

1           **SECTION 2992.** 224.927 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           224.927 (2) The division may disclose the information to the department of  
3 ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with a memorandum of  
4 understanding under s. 49.857.

5           **SECTION 2993.** 224.95 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

6           224.95 (1) (c) The applicant is an individual who has failed to comply, after  
7 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of  
8 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under  
9 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent  
10 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth  
11 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or  
12 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under  
13 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application for issuance or renewal of a license is  
14 denied under this paragraph is entitled to a notice and a hearing under s. 49.857 but  
15 is not entitled to a notice or hearing under sub. (4).

16           **SECTION 2993m.** 227.01 (12) of the statutes is repealed.

17           **SECTION 2994.** 227.01 (13) (im) of the statutes is created to read:

18           227.01 (13) (im) Relates to the real work, real pay pilot project under s. 49.147  
19 (3m).

20           **SECTION 2994d.** 227.01 (13) (km) of the statutes is created to read:

21           227.01 (13) (km) Establishes policies for information technology development  
22 projects as required under s. 16.971 (2) (Lg).

23           **SECTION 2994g.** 227.01 (13) (kr) of the statutes is created to read:

24           227.01 (13) (kr) Establishes policies for information technology development  
25 projects as required under s. 36.59 (1) (c).

1           **SECTION 2995.** 227.01 (13) (sm) of the statutes is repealed.

2           **SECTION 2996.** 227.01 (13) (um) of the statutes is amended to read:

3           227.01 (13) (um) Lists over-the-counter drugs covered by medical assistance  
4           Medical Assistance under s. 49.46 (2) (b) 6. i. or 49.471 (11) (a).

5           **SECTION 2997b.** 227.01 (13) (zx) of the statutes is created to read:

6           227.01 (13) (zx) Determines a fee under s. 440.03 (9) for an initial credential  
7           for which no examination is required, for a reciprocal credential, or for a credential  
8           renewal.

9           **SECTION 2997be.** 227.114 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

10          227.114 (6) When an agency, under s. 227.20 (1), files with the revisor  
11          legislative reference bureau a rule that is subject to this section, the agency shall  
12          include with the rule a summary of the analysis prepared under s. 227.19 (3) (e) and  
13          a summary of the comments of the legislative standing committees, if any. If the rule  
14          does not require the analysis under s. 227.19 (3) (e), the agency shall include with  
15          the rule a statement of the reason for the agency's determination under s. 227.19  
16          (3m). The revisor legislative reference bureau shall publish the summaries or the  
17          statement in the register with the rule.

18          **SECTION 2997br.** 227.135 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

19          227.135 (3) The agency shall send the statement of the scope of a proposed rule  
20          to the revisor legislative reference bureau for publication in the register. On the  
21          same day that the agency sends the statement to the revisor legislative reference  
22          bureau, the agency shall send a copy of the statement to the secretary of  
23          administration.

24          **SECTION 2997de.** 227.14 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

**SECTION 2997de**

1           227.14 (1) FORM AND STYLE. In preparing a proposed rule, an agency shall  
2           adhere substantially to the form and style used by the legislative reference bureau  
3           in the preparation of bill drafts and the form and style specified in the manual  
4           prepared by the legislative council staff and the revisor legislative reference bureau  
5           under s. 227.15 (7). To the greatest extent possible, an agency shall prepare proposed  
6           rules in plain language which can be easily understood.

7           **SECTION 2997dr.** 227.14 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

8           227.14 (3) REFERENCE TO APPLICABLE FORMS. If a proposed rule requires a new  
9           or revised form, an agency shall include a reference to the form in a note to the  
10          proposed rule and shall attach to the proposed rule a copy of the form or a description  
11          of how a copy may be obtained. The revisor legislative reference bureau shall insert  
12          the reference in the code as a note to the rule.

13          **SECTION 2997fe.** 227.14 (4m) of the statutes is amended to read:

14          227.14 (4m) NOTICE OF SUBMITTAL TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF. On the same  
15          day that an agency submits a proposed rule to the legislative council staff under s.  
16          227.15, the agency shall prepare a written notice of the agency's submittal to the  
17          legislative council staff. The notice shall include a statement of the date on which  
18          the proposed rule has been submitted to the legislative council staff for review, of the  
19          subject matter of the proposed rule and of whether a public hearing on the proposed  
20          rule is required, and shall identify the organizational unit within the agency that is  
21          primarily responsible for the promulgation of the rule. The notice shall be approved  
22          by the individual or body with policy-making powers over the subject matter of the  
23          proposed rule. The agency shall send the notice to the revisor legislative reference  
24          bureau for publication in the register. On the same day that the agency sends the



1 notice to the revisor legislative reference bureau, the agency shall send a copy of the  
2 notice to the secretary of administration.

3 **SECTION 2997fr.** 227.14 (6) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 227.14 (6) (c) A proposed rule shall be considered withdrawn on December 31  
5 of the 4th year after the year in which it is submitted to the legislative council staff  
6 under s. 227.15 (1), unless it has been filed ~~in the office of the revisor~~ with the  
7 legislative reference bureau under s. 227.20 (1) or withdrawn by the agency before  
8 that date. No action by a legislative committee or by either house of the legislature  
9 under s. 227.19 delays the date of withdrawal of a proposed rule under this  
10 paragraph.

11 **SECTION 2997he.** 227.15 (1m) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 227.15 (1m) (e) The time, date, and place of any public hearing specified in the  
13 notice in s. 227.17 as soon as that notice is submitted to the ~~revisor of statutes~~  
14 legislative reference bureau under s. 227.17 (1) (a).

15 **SECTION 2997hr.** 227.15 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 227.15 (2) ROLE OF LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STAFF. (intro.) The legislative council  
17 staff shall, within 20 working days following receipt of a proposed rule, review the  
18 proposed rule in accordance with this subsection. With the consent of the director  
19 of the legislative council staff, the review period may be extended for an additional  
20 20 working days. The legislative council staff shall act as a clearinghouse for rule  
21 drafting and cooperate with the agency and the revisor legislative reference bureau

22 to:

23 **SECTION 2997je.** 227.15 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           227.15 (7) RULES PROCEDURES MANUAL. The legislative council staff and the  
2   reviser's bureau legislative reference bureau shall prepare a manual to provide  
3   agencies with information on drafting, promulgation and legislative review of rules.

4           **SECTION 2997jr.** 227.17 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           227.17 (1) (a) Send written notice of the hearing to the reviser legislative  
6   reference bureau for publication in the register and, if required, publish the notice  
7   in a local newspaper.

8           **SECTION 2997Le.** 227.17 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           227.17 (1) (b) Send written notice of the hearing to each member of the  
10   legislature who has filed a written request for notice with the reviser legislative  
11   reference bureau. Upon request, the reviser legislative reference bureau shall  
12   furnish an agency with the name and address of each legislator who has requested  
13   notice.

14           **SECTION 2997Lr.** 227.17 (1) (bm) of the statutes is amended to read:

15           227.17 (1) (bm) Send written notice of the hearing to the secretary of  
16   administration on the same day that the notice is sent to the reviser legislative  
17   reference bureau under par. (a).

18           **SECTION 2997ne.** 227.19 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

19           227.19 (2) NOTIFICATION OF LEGISLATURE. An agency shall submit a notice to the  
20   chief clerk of each house of the legislature when a proposed rule is in final draft form.  
21   The notice shall be submitted in triplicate and shall be accompanied by a report in  
22   the form specified under sub. (3). A notice received under this subsection on or after  
23   September 1 of an even-numbered year shall be considered received on the first day  
24   of the next regular session of the legislature. The presiding officer of each house of  
25   the legislature shall, within 10 working days following the day on which the notice



1 and report are received, direct the appropriate chief clerk to refer them to one  
2 standing committee. The agency shall submit to the revisor legislative reference  
3 bureau for publication in the register a statement that a proposed rule has been  
4 submitted to the chief clerk of each house of the legislature. Each chief clerk shall  
5 enter a similar statement in the journal of his or her house.

6 **SECTION 2997nr.** 227.20 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 227.20 (1) An agency shall file a certified copy of each rule it promulgates in  
8 the office of the revisor with the legislative reference bureau. No rule is valid until  
9 the certified copy has been filed. A certified copy shall be typed or duplicated on 8  
10 1/2 by 11 inch paper, leaving sufficient room for the revisor's a stamp at the top of the  
11 first page. Forms that are filed need not comply with the specifications of this  
12 subsection.

13 **SECTION 2997pe.** 227.20 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 227.20 (2) The revisor legislative reference bureau shall endorse the date and  
15 the time of filing on each certified copy filed under sub. (1). The revisor bureau shall  
16 keep a file of all certified copies filed under sub. (1).

17 **SECTION 2997pr.** 227.20 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 227.20 (3) (intro.) Filing a certified copy of a rule with the revisor legislative  
19 reference bureau creates a presumption of all of the following:

20 **SECTION 2997re.** 227.21 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 227.21 (1) All rules that agencies are directed by this chapter to file with the  
22 revisor legislative reference bureau shall be published in the code and register as  
23 required under s. 35.93.

24 **SECTION 2997rr.** 227.21 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           227.21 (2) (a) Except as provided in s. 601.41 (3) (b), to avoid unnecessary  
2           expense an agency may, with the consent of the revisor legislative reference bureau  
3           and the attorney general, adopt standards established by technical societies and  
4           organizations of recognized national standing by incorporating the standards in its  
5           rules by reference to the specific issue or issues of the publication in which they  
6           appear, without reproducing the standards in full.

7           **SECTION 2997te.** 227.21 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

8           227.21 (2) (b) The attorney general shall consent to incorporation by reference  
9           only in a rule of limited public interest and in a case where the incorporated  
10          standards are readily available in published form or are available on optical disk or  
11          in another electronic format. Each rule containing an incorporation by reference  
12          shall state how the material incorporated may be obtained and, except as provided  
13          in s. 601.41 (3) (b), that the standards are on file at the offices of the agency and the  
14          revisor legislative reference bureau.

15          **SECTION 2997tr.** 227.21 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

16          227.21 (4) Agency materials that are exempt from the requirements of this  
17          chapter under s. 227.01 (13) may be published, either verbatim or in summary form,  
18          if the promulgating agency and the revisor legislative reference bureau determine  
19          that the public interest would be served by publication.

20          **SECTION 2997ve.** 227.22 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

21          227.22 (3) The revisor legislative reference bureau may prescribe in the  
22          manual prepared under s. 227.15 (7) the monthly date prior to which a rule must be  
23          filed in order to be included in that month's issue of the register. The revisor  
24          legislative reference bureau shall compute the effective date of each rule submitted  
25          for publication in the register and shall publish it in a note at the end of each section.

1 For the purpose of computing the effective date, the revisor legislative reference  
2 bureau may presume that an issue of the register will be published during the month  
3 in which it is designated for publication.

4 **SECTION 2997vr.** 227.24 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 227.24 (2) (c) Whenever the committee extends an emergency rule or part of  
6 an emergency rule under par. (a), it shall file a statement of its action with the agency  
7 promulgating the emergency rule and the revisor of statutes legislative reference  
8 bureau. The statement shall identify the specific emergency rule or part of an  
9 emergency rule to which it relates.

10 **SECTION 2997xe.** 227.24 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 227.24 (3) FILING. An agency shall file a rule promulgated under sub. (1) as  
12 provided in s. 227.20, shall mail a copy to the chief clerk of each house and to each  
13 member of the legislature at the time that the rule is filed and shall take any other  
14 step it considers feasible to make the rule known to persons who will be affected by  
15 it. The revisor legislative reference bureau shall insert in the notice section of each  
16 issue of the register a brief description of each rule under sub. (1) that is currently  
17 in effect. Each copy, notice or description of a rule promulgated under sub. (1) (a)  
18 shall be accompanied by a statement of the emergency finding by the agency or by  
19 a statement that the rule is promulgated at the direction of the joint committee for  
20 review of administrative rules under s. 227.26 (2) (b).

21 **SECTION 2997xr.** 227.25 of the statutes is amended to read:

22 **227.25 Revisor Legislative reference bureau.** (1) The revisor legislative  
23 reference bureau shall, in cooperation with the legislative council staff under s.  
24 227.15 (7), prepare a manual informing agencies about the form, style and placement  
25 of rules in the code.

1           (2) The ~~revisor~~ legislative reference bureau shall, upon request, furnish an  
2 agency with advice and assistance on the form and mechanics of rule drafting.

3           (3) An agency may request an advance commitment as to the title or numbering  
4 of a proposed rule by submitting a copy of the proposed rule indicating the requested  
5 title and numbering to the ~~revisor~~ legislative reference bureau prior to filing. As soon  
6 as possible after that, the ~~revisor~~ legislative reference bureau shall either approve  
7 the request or inform the agency of any change necessary to preserve uniformity in  
8 the code.

9           (4) The ~~revisor~~ legislative reference bureau may, prior to publication, edit the  
10 analysis of a proposed rule and any other material submitted for publication in the  
11 code and register, may refer to the fact that those materials are on file or may  
12 eliminate them and any reference to them in the code and register if ~~he or she~~  
13 believes they do not appreciably add to an understanding of the rule. The ~~revisor~~  
14 legislative reference bureau shall submit the edited version of any material to the  
15 agency for its comments prior to publication.

16           **SECTION 2997ze.** 227.27 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

17           227.27 (2) The code shall be prima facie evidence in all courts and proceedings  
18 as provided by s. 889.01, but this does not preclude reference to or, in case of a  
19 discrepancy, control over a rule filed with the ~~revisor~~ legislative reference bureau or  
20 the secretary of state, and the certified copy of a rule shall also and in the same degree  
21 be prima facie evidence in all courts and proceedings.

22           **SECTION 2998.** 227.43 (1) (by) of the statutes is amended to read:

23           227.43 (1) (by) Assign a hearing examiner to preside over any hearing of a  
24 contested case that is required to be conducted by the department of workforce

1 development children and families under ch. 48 or subch. III of ch. 49 and that is not  
2 conducted by the secretary of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

3 **SECTION 2999.** 227.43 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 227.43 (2) (d) The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
5 shall notify the division of hearings and appeals of every pending hearing to which  
6 the administrator of the division is required to assign a hearing examiner under sub.  
7 (1) (by) after the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families is  
8 notified that a hearing on the matter is required.

9 **SECTION 3000.** 227.43 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 227.43 (3) (d) The administrator of the division of hearings and appeals may  
11 set the fees to be charged for any services rendered to the department of ~~workforce~~  
12 development children and families by a hearing examiner under this section in a  
13 manner consistent with a federally approved allocation methodology. The fees shall  
14 cover the total cost of the services.

15 **SECTION 3001.** 227.43 (4) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 227.43 (4) (d) The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families  
17 shall pay all costs of the services of a hearing examiner, including support services,  
18 assigned under sub. (1) (by), according to the fees set under sub. (3) (d).

19 **SECTION 3002.** 227.54 of the statutes is amended to read:

20 **227.54 Stay of proceedings.** The institution of the proceeding for review  
21 shall not stay enforcement of the agency decision. The reviewing court may order a  
22 stay upon such terms as it deems proper, except as otherwise provided in ss. 49.17  
23 (7), 196.43, 253.06 (7), 448.02 (9), and 551.62.

24 **SECTION 3002m.** 229.68 (15) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           229.68 (15) Impose, by the adoption of a resolution, the taxes under subch. V  
2 of ch. 77. A district may not levy any taxes that are not expressly authorized under  
3 subch. V of ch. 77 and that do not receive the affirmative vote of a supermajority of  
4 the district board. If a district adopts a resolution which imposes taxes, it shall  
5 deliver a certified copy of the resolution to the secretary of revenue at least ~~30~~ 120  
6 days before its effective date.

7           **SECTION 3002n.** 229.824 (15) of the statutes is amended to read:

8           229.824 (15) Impose, by the adoption of a resolution, the taxes under subch. V  
9 of ch. 77, except that the taxes imposed by the resolution may not take effect until  
10 the resolution is approved by a majority of the electors in the district's jurisdiction  
11 voting on the resolution at a referendum, to be held at the first spring primary or  
12 September primary following by at least 45 days the date of adoption of the  
13 resolution. Two questions shall appear on the ballot. The first question shall be:  
14 "Shall a sales tax and a use tax be imposed at the rate of 0.5% in .... County for  
15 purposes related to football stadium facilities in the .... Professional Football  
16 Stadium District?" The 2nd question shall be: "Shall excess revenues from the 0.5%  
17 sales tax and use tax be permitted to be used for property tax relief purposes in ....  
18 County?" Approval of the first question constitutes approval of the resolution of the  
19 district board. Approval of the 2nd question is not effective unless the first question  
20 is approved. The clerk of the district shall publish the notices required under s. 10.06  
21 (4) (c), (f) and (i) for any referendum held under this subsection. Notwithstanding  
22 s. 10.06 (4) (c), the type A notice under s. 10.01 (2) (a) relating to the referendum is  
23 valid even if given and published late as long as it is given and published prior to the  
24 election as early as practicable. A district may not levy any taxes that are not  
25 expressly authorized under subch. V of ch. 77. The district may not levy any taxes



1 until the professional football team and the governing body of the municipality in  
2 which the football stadium facilities are located agree on how to fund the  
3 maintenance of the football stadium facilities. The district may not levy any taxes  
4 until the professional football team and the governing body of the municipality in  
5 which the football stadium facilities are located agree on how to distribute the  
6 proceeds, if any, from the sale of naming rights related to the football stadium  
7 facilities. If a district board adopts a resolution that imposes taxes and the resolution  
8 is approved by the electors, the district shall deliver a certified copy of the resolution  
9 to the secretary of revenue at least ~~30~~ 120 days before its effective date. If a district  
10 board adopts a resolution that imposes taxes and the resolution is not approved by  
11 the electors, the district is dissolved.

12 **SECTION 3004b.** 230.03 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 230.03 (3) "Agency" means any board, commission, committee, council, or  
14 department in state government or a unit thereof created by the constitution or  
15 statutes if such board, commission, committee, council, department, unit, or the  
16 head thereof, is authorized to appoint subordinate staff by the constitution or  
17 statute, except a legislative or judicial board, commission, committee, council,  
18 department, or unit thereof or an authority created under subch. II of ch. 114 or  
19 subch. III of ch. 149 or under ch. 231, 232, 233, 234, 235, ~~or 237,~~ or 279. "Agency" does  
20 not mean any local unit of government or body within one or more local units of  
21 government that is created by law or by action of one or more local units of  
22 government.

23 **SECTION 3006.** 230.08 (2) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

24 230.08 (2) (e) 1. Administration — ~~13~~ 14.

25 **SECTION 3007.** 230.08 (2) (e) 2m. of the statutes is created to read:

1 230.08 (2) (e) 2m. Children and families — 5.

2 **SECTION 3008.** 230.08 (2) (e) 6. of the statutes is amended to read:

3 230.08 (2) (e) 6. Workforce development — 7 6.

4 **SECTION 3010.** 230.08 (2) (L) 6. of the statutes is repealed.

5 **SECTION 3011.** 230.08 (2) (of) of the statutes is repealed.

6 **SECTION 3012.** 230.08 (2) (pd) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 230.08 (2) (pd) The chairperson of the parole earned release review  
8 commission.

9 **SECTION 3013.** 230.08 (2) (tv) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 230.08 (2) (tv) The director of the office of urban development in the  
11 department of ~~health and family services~~ children and families, appointed under s.  
12 48.48 (16m).

13 **SECTION 3013m.** 230.08 (2) (wh) of the statutes is created to read:

14 230.08 (2) (wh) The judicial council attorney appointed under s. 758.13 (3) (g)  
15 2.

16 **SECTION 3014.** 230.08 (2) (yc) of the statutes is created to read:

17 230.08 (2) (yc) Two persons employed by the department of commerce engaged  
18 in advertising, marketing, and promotional activities within the United States for  
19 economic development of, and business recruitment to, this state.

20 **SECTION 3016.** 230.13 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 230.13 (3) (a) The director and the administrator shall provide to the  
22 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child  
23 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) information requested under s. 49.22 (2m) that  
24 would otherwise be closed to the public under this section. Information provided

1 under this paragraph may only include an individual's name and address, an  
2 individual's employer and financial information related to an individual.

3 **SECTION 3017.** 230.147 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 230.147 (1) Each appointing authority of an agency with more than 100  
5 authorized permanent full-time equivalent positions shall prepare and implement  
6 a plan of action to employ persons who, at the time determined under sub. (4), receive  
7 aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5), with the goal of making the  
8 ratio of those persons occupying permanent positions in the agency to the total  
9 number of persons occupying permanent positions in the agency equal to the ratio  
10 of the average case load receiving aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3)  
11 to (5), in this state in the previous fiscal year to the average number of persons in the  
12 state civilian labor force in the preceding fiscal year, as determined by the  
13 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

14 **SECTION 3018.** 230.147 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 230.147 (2) Each appointing authority of an agency with 100 or fewer  
16 authorized permanent full-time equivalent positions is encouraged to employ  
17 persons who, at the time determined under sub. (4), receive aid under s. 49.19, or  
18 benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5), to attempt to make the ratio of those persons  
19 occupying permanent positions in the agency to the total number of persons  
20 occupying permanent positions in the agency equal to the ratio of the average case  
21 load receiving aid under s. 49.19, or benefits under s. 49.147 (3) to (5) in this state  
22 in the previous fiscal year to the average number of persons in the state civilian labor  
23 force in the preceding fiscal year, as determined by the department of ~~workforce~~  
24 development children and families.

25 **SECTION 3023a.** 233.02 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           233.02 (1) (a) Three members nominated by the governor, and with the advice  
2           and consent of the senate appointed, for ~~3-year~~ 5-year terms.

3           **SECTION 3023b.** 233.02 (1) (ag) of the statutes is created to read:

4           233.02 (1) (ag) Three members nominated by the board of directors and  
5           appointed by the governor, with the advice and consent of the senate, for 5-year  
6           terms.

7           **SECTION 3023c.** 233.02 (1) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

8           233.02 (1) (am) Each cochairperson of the joint committee on finance or a  
9           member of the committee legislature designated by that cochairperson.

10          **SECTION 3023d.** 233.02 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

11          233.02 (8) The members of the board of directors shall annually elect a  
12          chairperson and may elect other officers as they consider appropriate. ~~Six~~ Eight  
13          voting members of the board of directors constitute a quorum for the purpose of  
14          conducting the business and exercising the powers of the authority, notwithstanding  
15          the existence of any vacancy. The members of the board of directors specified under  
16          sub. (1) (c) and (g) may not be the chairperson of the board of directors for purposes  
17          of 1995 Wisconsin Act 27, section 9159 (2). The board of directors may take action  
18          upon a vote of a majority of the members present, unless the bylaws of the authority  
19          require a larger number.

20          **SECTION 3023e.** 233.03 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

21          233.03 (2) Sue and be sued; have a seal and alter the seal at pleasure; have  
22          perpetual existence; maintain an office; negotiate and enter into leases; accept gifts  
23          or grants, ~~but not including research grants in which the grant investigator is an~~  
24          employee of the board of regents; accept bequests or loans; accept and comply with  
25          any lawful conditions attached to federal financial assistance; and make and execute

1 other instruments necessary or convenient to the exercise of the powers of the  
2 authority.

3 **SECTION 3023f.** 233.03 (11) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 233.03 (11) Issue bonds in accordance with ss. 233.20 to ~~233.27~~ 233.26.

5 **SECTION 3023g.** 233.04 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 233.04 (1) By October 1, 1997, and annually thereafter, submit to the chief  
7 clerk of each house of the legislature under s. 13.172 (2), the president of the board  
8 of regents, the secretary of administration and the governor a report on the patient  
9 care, education, research and community service activities and accomplishments of  
10 the authority and an audited financial statement, certified by an independent  
11 auditor, of the authority's operations. ~~The financial statement shall include a~~  
12 ~~separate accounting of the use of the payment under sub. (7) (f).~~

13 **SECTION 3023h.** 233.04 (3b) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

14 233.04 (3b) (a) 1. Delivering ~~comprehensive, high-quality~~ health care to  
15 patients using the hospitals and to those seeking care from its programs, including  
16 a commitment to provide such care for the medically indigent.

17 **SECTION 3023i.** 233.04 (7) (f) of the statutes is repealed.

18 **SECTION 3023j.** 233.04 (8) of the statutes is repealed.

19 **SECTION 3023k.** 233.04 (10) of the statutes is repealed.

20 **SECTION 3023L.** 233.05 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

21 **SECTION 3023m.** 233.10 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 233.10 (2) (intro.) Subject to ~~subs. (3), (3m), (3r) and (3t)~~ and ch. 40 and the duty  
23 to engage in collective bargaining with employees in a collective bargaining unit for  
24 which a representative is recognized or certified under subch. I of ch. 111, the  
25 authority may establish any of the following:

1           **SECTION 3023n.** 233.10 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

2           **SECTION 3023o.** 233.10 (3m) of the statutes is repealed.

3           **SECTION 3023p.** 233.10 (3r) of the statutes is repealed.

4           **SECTION 3023q.** 233.10 (3t) of the statutes is repealed.

5           **SECTION 3023r.** 233.10 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

6           **SECTION 3023s.** 233.20 (3m) of the statutes is created to read:

7           **233.20 (3m)** The authority may not issue bonds or incur indebtedness  
8           described under s. 233.03 (12) unless one of the following applies:

9           (a) The bonds or indebtedness are a refinancing of existing bonds or  
10           indebtedness.

11           (b) If the authority has a bond rating from Moody's Investor Service, Inc., of  
12           better than A, or from Standard & Poor's Corporation of better than A, or equivalent  
13           ratings from those or comparable rating agencies when such rating systems or rating  
14           agencies no longer exist, the authority has provided notice to the joint committee on  
15           finance and the secretary of the department of administration of the bond rating of  
16           the authority, the amount of the proposed bonds or indebtedness, and the proposed  
17           use of the proceeds, and the joint committee on finance has not notified the authority  
18           within 30 working days after receipt of the notice that the joint committee on finance  
19           has scheduled a meeting to review the proposed bonds or indebtedness and the  
20           secretary of the department of administration has not notified the authority within  
21           30 working days after receipt of the notice that the secretary will conduct further  
22           review of the proposed bonds or indebtedness.

23           (c) The joint committee on finance votes to approve the amount of the bonds or  
24           indebtedness and the secretary of the department of administration, or his or her  
25           designee, has issued written approval of the bonds or indebtedness.



1           **SECTION 3023t.** 233.27 of the statutes is repealed.

2           **SECTION 3023u.** 233.42 of the statutes is repealed.

3           **SECTION 3024.** 234.01 (4n) (a) 3m. e. of the statutes is amended to read:

4           234.01 (4n) (a) 3m. e. The facility is located in a targeted area, as determined  
5           by the authority after considering the factors set out in s. ~~560.605 (2m) (a) to (h)~~  
6           560.605 (2m) (c), 2005 stats., s. 560.605 (2m) (d), 2005 stats., s. 560.605 (2m) (e), 2005  
7           stats., and s. 560.605 (2m) (a), (b), and (f) to (h).

8           **SECTION 3025.** 234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by 2005  
9           Wisconsin Act 25, is amended to read:

10           234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) ~~Surplus~~ Except as provided in sub. (3), surplus may be  
11           expended or encumbered only in accordance with the plan approved under par. (b),  
12           except that the authority may transfer from one plan category to another:

13           **SECTION 3026.** 234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by 2007  
14           Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

15           234.165 (2) (c) (intro.) ~~Except as provided in sub. (3), surplus~~ Surplus may be  
16           expended or encumbered only in accordance with the plan approved under par. (b),  
17           except that the authority may transfer from one plan category to another:

18           **SECTION 3027g.** 234.165 (3) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

19           234.165 (3) (a) For the purpose of housing grants and loans under s. 560.9803  
20           and housing grants under s. 560.9805, in fiscal year 2007-08 the authority shall  
21           transfer to the department of commerce \$2,025,000 of its actual surplus under this  
22           section and in fiscal year 2008-09 the authority shall transfer to the department of  
23           commerce \$2,000,000 of its actual surplus under this section.

24           **SECTION 3028d.** 234.165 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin  
25           Act .... (this act), is repealed.

*MA created*

1           **SECTION 3028e.** 234.165 (3) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

2           234.165 (3) (b) For the purpose of transitional housing grants under s. 560.9806  
3           and for grants to agencies and shelter facilities for homeless individuals and  
4           families as provided under s. 560.9808, in fiscal year 2007-08 the authority shall  
5           transfer to the department of commerce \$1,000,000 of its actual surplus under this  
6           section, and in fiscal year 2008-09 the authority shall transfer to the department of  
7           commerce \$1,000,000 of its actual surplus under this section.

8           **SECTION 3028f.** 234.165 (3) (b) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin  
9           Act .... (this act), is repealed.

10          **SECTION 3029.** 236.335 of the statutes is amended to read:

11          **236.335 Prohibited subdividing; forfeit.** No lot or parcel in a recorded plat  
12          may be divided, or used if so divided, for purposes of sale or building development if  
13          the resulting lots or parcels do not conform to this chapter, to any applicable  
14          ordinance of the approving authority or to the rules of the department of ~~workforce~~  
15          ~~development~~ commerce under s. 236.13. Any person making or causing such a  
16          division to be made shall forfeit not less than \$100 nor more than \$500 to the  
17          approving authority, or to the state if there is a violation of this chapter or the rules  
18          of the department of ~~workforce development~~ commerce.

19          **SECTION 3031.** 250.041 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

20          250.041 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a registration, license,  
21          certification, approval, permit or certificate under sub. (1) does not have a social  
22          security number, the individual, as a condition of obtaining the registration, license,  
23          certification, approval, permit or certificate, shall submit a statement made or  
24          subscribed under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not  
25          have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the

1 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A registration, license,  
2 certification, approval, permit or certificate issued or renewed in reliance upon a  
3 false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

4 **SECTION 3032.** 250.041 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 250.041 (2) The department of health and family services may not disclose any  
6 information received under sub. (1) to any person except to the department of  
7 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the purpose of making  
8 certifications required under s. 49.857.

9 **SECTION 3033.** 250.041 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 250.041 (3) The department of health and family services shall deny an  
11 application for the issuance or renewal of a registration, license, certification,  
12 approval, permit or certificate specified in sub. (1) or may, under a memorandum of  
13 understanding under s. 49.857 (2), suspend or restrict a registration, license,  
14 certification, approval, permit or certificate specified in sub. (1) if the department of  
15 ~~workforce development~~ children and families certifies under s. 49.857 that the  
16 applicant for or holder of the registration, license, certification, approval, permit or  
17 certificate is delinquent in the payment of court-ordered payments of child or family  
18 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related  
19 to the support of a child or former spouse or fails to comply, after appropriate notice,  
20 with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~  
21 children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related  
22 to paternity or child support proceedings.

23 **SECTION 3033r.** 250.15 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           250.15 (2) (c) From the appropriation under s. 20.435 (5) (fh), the department  
2 shall award ~~\$25,000~~ \$50,000 in each fiscal year as a grant to HealthNet of Janesville,  
3 Inc.

4           **SECTION 3035r.** 252.12 (2) (a) 8. of the statutes is renumbered 252.12 (2) (a) 8.  
5 (intro.) and amended to read:

6           252.12 (2) (a) 8. 'Mike Johnson life care and early intervention services grants.'  
7 (intro.) The department shall award not more than ~~\$2,569,900~~ \$2,969,900 in fiscal  
8 year ~~2005-06~~ 2007-08 and not more than \$3,569,900 in fiscal year ~~2008-09~~ and each  
9 fiscal year thereafter in grants to applying organizations for the provision of needs  
10 assessments; assistance in procuring financial, medical, legal, social and pastoral  
11 services; counseling and therapy; homecare services and supplies; advocacy; and  
12 case management services. These services shall include early intervention services.  
13 The department shall also award not more than \$74,000 in each year from the  
14 appropriation under s. 20.435 (7) (md) for the services under this subdivision. The  
15 state share of payment for case management services that are provided under s.  
16 49.45 (25) (be) to recipients of medical assistance shall be paid from the  
17 appropriation under s. 20.435 (5) (am). All of the following apply to grants awarded  
18 under this subdivision:

19           **SECTION 3035s.** 252.12 (2) (a) 8. a. to c. of the statutes are created to read:

20           252.12 (2) (a) 8. a. None of the funds awarded may be used to fund AIDS  
21 programs, or to develop materials, designed to promote or encourage, directly,  
22 intravenous drug use or sexual activity, whether homosexual or heterosexual.

23           b. None of the funds awarded may be used for political purposes.

24           c. Funds awarded shall be used to provide medical care and support services  
25 for individuals with HIV.